MINUTES OF WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue
August 11, 2009
2:25 p.m.

PRESENT:  Sharon P. Scott; Tina L. Vick; Jos€phVhitaker; Dr. Patricia P. Woodbury;
Herbert H. Bateman, Jr.; Joe S. Frank; and Madd&icMillan 7

ABSENT: N o] [ 0

OTHERS PRESENT: Neil Morgan; Stuart E. Katz; Maléhshington Jenkins; Alan Archer;
Cynthia Rohlf; Lottie Vincent; Allen Jackson; Ligaipriano; Yvonne Manning; Scott Liebold;
Chad Pritchett; Steve Carpenter; Everett Skippaul Frible; LaVerne Lovett; Steve Terveer; Jeff
Verhoef; Ken Krakaur; Sabine Hirschauer; Jennifealklr; Cleder Jones; Kim Lee; and Jerri
Wilson

l. Call to Order

Mayor Frank stated the Work Session had beguhoam and twenty-five minutes
later than scheduled due to the Special MeetinGityf Council held at 11:45 a.m. He suggested
Council conduct the Work Session in an abbreviatedner in order to get through as many of the
items as possible. If necessary, the remaininggtéor discussion could be added to the next
scheduled meeting of September 8, 2009. MayorkFmamoduced Acting City Manager Neil
Morgan.

I. Fire Department Response Times

Acting City Manager Neil Morgan introduced Mr. d8c Liebold, Deputy Chief,
Newport News Fire Department, to provide a predemtaon how the Fire Department made
decisions to best optimize response times.

Deputy Chief Liebold explained that the Fire Diypeent used data to determine
where to locate equipment, manpower, and statiomeduce response times. He stated data was
collected and analyzed annually to look for tremdsch offered operational posture. The Fire
Department had met and exceeded its own standesdsell as the standards of acceptability from
its international accreditation board.

Deputy Chief Liebold stated the Fire Departmewtvmled a multi-layer of response
capability in the City, such as: 1) Fire Suppressi) Emergency Medical Services — Treatment and
Transport; 3) Rescue and Life Safety; 4) Fire leipa and Investigation; and 5) Fire Education.
Deputy Chief Liebold noted the department measatedess by the following: 1) Metrics; 2) Cost
Benefit Analysis; 3) Community Expectations; 4) hfState and Federal Standards; 5) Regional



Page 2
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

Considerations; and 6) Fiscal Constraints.

Deputy Chief Liebold reported the Fire Departmesdeived accreditation in 2008
from the Commission on Fire Accreditation Interoatil Center for Public Safety Excellence, after
a four-member panel performed a thorough investigatf the Fire Department’s operations. One
key component of the investigation process incluttesl standard of response coverage, which
incorporated: 1) Community Baselines; 2) Risk Assent; 3) Critical Tasking Capability; 4)
Distribution Service Levels; 5) Concentration SeeviLevels; 6) Service Level Objectives; 7)
Reliability Study; and 8) Policy Recommendations.

Deputy Chief Liebold stated because the City \Wad out geographically, with
railroad tracks splitting the City in half, the depnent was always mindful of accessibility from
both sides of the track. Anytime the departmentenpalicy decisions on the location of various
apparatus, or movement of personnel, cross-oveatitots were considered. (A copy of the
presentation, “Newport News Fire Department,” ta@ted and made a part of these minutes.)

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the StatiDistrict map on page 6 of the
attached presentation reflected locations of Fiegi@s throughout the City, with the inclusion of
the new airport Fire Station or whether it onlyleeted districts. Deputy Chief Liebold responded
that the graph reflected all stations in their atctistricts.

Councilwoman McMillan asked whether there was firgestation per district. Chief
Liebold responded there was one fire station pridi.

Deputy Chief Liebold reported the risk assessmeomponent of the Fire
Department included: 1) Available and Needed Fil@vE 2) Probability; 3) Consequence and
Occupancy Risk; and 4) Established Fire Managerdenes. He stated the department used
formulas to determine how much water flow was ndedéhe Fire Department worked with
Waterworks to ensure water flow availability basedthe current system. Recommendations were
provided to Waterworks when upgrades were needHte Probability component looked at the
likelihood an event would occur in a given periddtime based on the available data to support
recommendations. Consequence and Occupancy Ris&restghe “what-if” factor, at any given
facility, and how it would affect the economicsfelisafety, and infrastructure. The Fire
Management Zones were established to determinenathatnew station was needed in a particular
location.

Deputy Chief Liebold mentioned the departmentesssd the capabilities of the
equipment used. Each of the suppression and ladades had pumping capability. Everything was
taken into account to determine need in a partiarea.



Page 3
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the Fire Depent conducted unannounced
audits to ensure fire hydrants and equipment wastifonal. Deputy Chief Liebold responded that
fire station districts conducted routine surveyhjol checked fire hydrant locations to ensure they
were clear of vegetation, not painted shut, andatjpaal.

Deputy Chief Liebold stated statistical relevanududed: 1) Data Set — Data from
over 100,000 calls for service from 2005 througl®®02) Filtration — Concentration data that
reflected only calls that were true; and 3) Comesisy — Any deviation of 10% from year-to-year
was analyzed to determine cause.  The data of pilipatas broken down into day of the week,
time of day and time of year. The time of day daaked during the middle of the day when people
cooked lunch and dinner. Monthly call volume shoveetiigh volume of calls during February
2008.

Councilwoman Woodbury questioned why the spikelath in February 2008. She
guestioned whether it was a particularly cold Fabya Deputy Chief Liebold responded the
weather was reviewed, which noted February waddmmnth. There was no indication as to what
caused the spike.

Deputy Chief Liebold explained the Fire Departinéeivided the City into two
battalions: North and South Battalion. There wexne fire stations, soon to be eleven, with the
opening of the airport station. He explained thia $tations were built based on call volume and
response times. The Fire Department worked closély the Department of Development, to be
kept abreast of various projects proposed for tlitg. Ohis ensured the department planned,
designed and constructed necessary fire statiamsthieé component of Emergency Services, the
department further divided the City into 99 differgeographical segments. If there was a problem
in any given segment, the Department was able Hlalpidata to address any issues and fine tune
procedures. The call volume analysis conducted fa205-2007, reflected the number of calls
across the City. The data provided the departmetit ane piece of evidence that enabled the
department to propose the construction of the Hifpe station.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the cakkxeived were for fires. Deputy
Chief Liebold responded the data reflected allscaticluding fires.

Deputy Chief Liebold noted data that reflectespanse time and how long it took to
get into a particular area of the City. He expldinata identified an issue of responding to calls i
the Colony Pines area. Although there were otherdistricts in close proximity, traffic congestion
and other geographical issues created slower resptimes in the Colony Pines area. This
information necessitated the need for Fire Statibmat the airport.



Page 4
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the reasba &irport was considered to be
a good location for a fire station to serve thed@glPines neighborhood. She further inquired why
a location on McManus or Denbigh Boulevard was oonsidered. Deputy Chief Liebold
responded the department leased a temporary Yaadjacent to the airport, and were looking for a
permanent site.

Acting City Manager Neil Morgan commented tha ttmporary site was selected to
accommodate the present need, in response tootathe and response time challenges.

Councilwoman McMillan stated it was a costly dable option and felt more
thought should have been given to the situatioepudy Chief Liebold stated the same analysis was
used to determine where the replacement for Fagdbt3 would be located.

Deputy Chief Liebold noted the Critical Task Ayst component determined what
jobs needed to be done. The department receivestiqas regularly, such as why so many pieces
of equipment were necessary at a fire scene, oramimg truck responded to a medical call. There
were many matters to be accomplished at a fireesagich required more than three or four people.
He explained that the department was required t& \@od operate under various regulations, such
as the Department of Labor regulations, OSHA statgjdederal regulations, and others. The City
could be exposed to liability if someone was infuend the department did not follow required
regulations.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the department cw®d to receive calls from
citizens who only wanted transportation to the litatkpDeputy Chief Liebold responded yes.

Deputy Chief Liebold explained that First-Due Apgtus Responders arrived within
6 minutes for 70% of all structure fires in theyCiand the Basic Life Support Force with AED
capability, or an ALS medic unit, arrived withinn@inutes for 70% of priority EMS incidents. The
baseline current service levels for all other resgoassets for residential structure fires was 11
minutes and 30 seconds; 13 minutes for commero@lagartment fires; and seven minutes for all
priority EMS incidents.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether the figuresrevprojections or actual times
for the First Due Apparatus Responders. Deputy fQhebold responded these were actual times
and averages from the data system in use for thicfqar years.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether all firégaions would be fully equipped
and able to maintain a six minute and below respdinse when Fire Station 11 opened. Deputy
Chief Liebold responded that was the goal.



Page 5
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

Councilman Bateman inquired about the opening €@t Fire Station 11. Deputy
Chief Liebold replied the opening was planned feptémber or October of 2009.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether equipmewbuld be pulled from other
fire stations to outfit Fire Station 11. Deputyi€fhLiebold responded one reserved engine was
outfitted and ready to move in and personnel wdaddhifted to staff the station. Medic Unit 601
would also be moved in.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether each fstation would have a medic.
Deputy Chief Liebold responded that each Fire &tatvould have a medic; however, Fire Station 7
had a medic to handle downtown calls.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether each fs&tion would have a pump
truck. Deputy Chief Liebold replied each fire siatwould have a Suppression and Medic unit. A
couple of stations had a Heavy Rescue Unit andi8lpet/nits were scattered throughout the City.

Councilwoman Scott commented that firefighteteraded her North District Town
Hall meetings with complaints that the Fire Depamindid not have enough equipment. She
guestioned how the comments could be made if alstations were fully functional. Deputy Chief
Liebold explained that the problems faced withie ttepartment were due to attrition from the
volume of personnel who retired in the past fivarge He advised there were 34 candidates in the
hiring pool scheduled to start work with the Firedartment on Monday, August 17, 2009. He had
adequate equipment to run the Fire Department.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about assurancesguded in the new fire-
fighter's contract that obligated them to stay wille City over a certain amount of time after being
trained. Deputy Chief Liebold stated the contrmaas very specific. The new firefighters agreed to
reimburse the City for all training costs, to imbduthe hiring physical, and the polygraph, which
amounted to more than $3,500, if they did not stdly the City for two years or more.

Councilman Bateman inquired whether firefighteosicerns, such as incidents and
fear for their lives were handled appropriatelydither verbal or written response. Deputy Chief
Liebold replied most concerns were expressed Vgraat it depended on the incident or concern.
The majority of concerns was verbal and was hangjbguiopriately.

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the Fire Btepent was proactive when
evaluating incidents. Deputy Chief Liebold replidne Battalion Chief evaluated significant
incidents, such as fires.



Page 6
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether the FirepBrtment could consider a
longer period of time, i.e. three years for neweffghter recruits to work for the City after trangi.
Deputy Chief Liebold replied it was difficult to g the two year point.

lll.  Warwick Boulevard Speed Limit

Acting City Manager Morgan noted the memo to Giipuncil from the City
Manager Hildebrandt dated July 6, 2009, regardhey speed limits for Warwick Boulevard —
Avenue of the Arts, to Nettles Drive. He stated @ity Manager recommended a 30-mph speed
limit as opposed to a 25-mph or 45-mph speed lirStaff would be comfortable with a speed limit
of 30-to-35 mph.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the matteras brought before the
Transportation Safety Commission and if so, what thair recommendation. Acting City Manager
Morgan replied the matter was brought before than3portation Safety Commission who
recommended not less than 35 mph in the area rie@t@pher Newport University (CNU) and 45-
mph in the remainder of the corridor.

Councilwoman McMillan felt 35-mph in the area n€&aNU and 45-mph in the
remainder of the corridor was reasonable. CourailBateman agreed.

Councilwoman Woodbury stated she received marg ¢@m constituents who
were very upset about a $70 million road. She wstded that the students were important but they
also were adults and needed to learn to make selfeiges. People who worked all day in the
shipyard and Fort Eustis did not want to have totiooe experiencing bottle neck traffic in that
particular area. It was the University’s choicetd the dorm buildings across the street andalhe f
it was their responsibility to build a tunnel opssover for CNU students and not hold the citizens
of Newport News hostage.

There was consensus among City Council to sugperrecommendations of the
Transportation Safety Commission to establish a sigeed of 35-mph in the area near Christopher
Newport University and 45-mph in the remainderiaf torridor.

Mayor Frank inquired about VDOT’s completion déte the corridor. Acting City
Manager Morgan replied VDOT's official new comptetidate was April 2010.

V. Fiscal Year 2010 Bond Authorization

Acting City Manager Morgan reported the City Hadell bonds later this fiscal year
to carry out the FY 2010 Capital Improvement PIatP). He stated the first step to carry out the



Page 7
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

CIP was approval of the FY 2010 Bond Authorizatfon $31 million. The authorization was
increased by $1 million from the $30 million so Bty would have additional flexibility in pricing
the bonds. He introduced Ms. Lisa Cipriano, DivecBudget and Evaluation, to report on the FY
2010 Bond Authorization.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the needrtorease the bond authorization
by $1 million to $31 million. Ms. Cipriano replied bond authorization allowed the City to
purchase money. Unlike the operating budget, wttexeCity knew what its cash flow from taxes
and other sources was, the City had to go and psecmoney in the bond market. There were three
ways to sell bonds; one way being by true faceesatity Council was authorizing the need to
borrow $30 million. A bond authorization set thgper limits on the types of money that the City
could borrow. If the City had to sell bonds atiscdunt to get $30 million in cash, the City had to
actually sell $31 million worth of bonds at a disoted rate. During the last two bond sales, the
City had been in a situation where it sold bonda ptemium, meaning it received money and paid
less debt service, which it hoped to do during baed sale. The City needed to have a maximum
number should there be a change in the market tenity had to sell the bonds at a discount;
however, the City was not anticipating selling atiscount, but things could change rapidly in this
economy. The City was setting the maximum limit; Wwanted $30 million in bond cash.

Councilwoman Woodbury voiced concern about they @cquiring an additional $1
million in debt. She inquired whether the $1 roitliwould still be needed if the City sold its bonds
at a premium and not at a discount. Ms. Cipriapdied no; the City’'s intention was to only borrow
$30 million.

Ms. Cipriano stated the FY 2010 Bond Authorizatmf $31 million allowed City
Council to 1) Appropriate funding for projects imetFY 2010 — FY 2014 CIP; 2) Issue General
Obligation Bonds to finance CIP projects; 3) Isefunding Bonds; and 4) Issue Build America
Bonds (BABs). (A copy of the presentation, “FY POBond Authorization,” and “FY 2010 Bond
Authorization Project Allocation,” are attached andde a part of these minutes.)

Ms. Cipriano stated the FY 2010 Bond Authorizatigould: 1) Keep the City on
track to structure the FY 2011 Bond Authorizatioratign with the FY 2011 — FY 2015 CIP when
adopted by City Council later this fiscal year;P2pvide the needed flexibility to structure the #hon
issuance to accommodate market conditions at e of the sale; 3) Provide Refunding authority
if market conditions remained favorable; and 4)oladditional authority to issue BABs if the
City’s Financial Advisors determined that this vitas best financing option.

V. Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board Réormance Contract

Councilwoman McMillan stated she read the comtracet with Mr. Chuck Hall,
Executive Director, Hampton-Newport News Commusgrvices Board, and did not have a



Page 8
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

problem with the Performance Contract.

Mayor Frank stated he did not have a problem Wl contract, and inquired
whether City Council wanted to waive the preseatati

There was consensus among City Council to wdieeptesentation and support the
Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board RPerémce Contract at the September 8,
2009 City Council Regular Meeting.

VI.  Food Bank Capital Campaign

Acting City Manager Morgan recalled the FY 2008012 CIP approved by City
Council, in January 2007, included $400,000, fee fyears, that amounted to a total pledge of $2
million to the Foodbank Capital Campaign. He reteith the CIP was a planning document; it did
not authorize funds to be spent. The annual $800c0ntribution must be appropriated by the City
Council in the year it was to be paid before aaisbment of funds to the Food Bank could occur.
He introduced Mr. Steve Terveer, Chief Executivéidef, Foodbank of the Virginia Peninsula, to
report on the Food Bank’s Capital Campaign.

Mr. Terveer reported the Food Bank of the VirgirReninsula was a 501(c)(3)
organization that was established in 1986 and éocat 9912 Hosier Street, Newport News. The
mission of the Foodbank of the Virginia Peninsulaswto distribute food effectively through
collaborative efforts that minimized hunger, andrpoted nutrition and self-reliance through
education. Since its inception in 1986, the Food#thaf the Virginia Peninsula had distributed a
total of 83,913,272 pounds of food to benefit theeay and hungry of the Virginia Peninsula.
During the 2007 — 2008 fiscal year, the Foodbaskriuted 9,468,890 pounds of food throughout
its nine jurisdiction service areas (Cities of Haomp Newport News, Poquoson and Williamsburg
and the Counties of Gloucester, James City, Math8wsy and York).

Mr. Terveer stated the Kid's Café Program progi@enutritious afternoon meal or
snack to children in afterschool programs in a,sedeng and learning environment. There were 24
Kids Café sites that had served 230,559 meals witious snacks to an average of 1,432 children,
weekly, during the 2008-2009 school year. The Fao&of the Virginia Peninsula currently served
210 agencies in the nine jurisdictions it servedlewport News received nearly 34% out of the
9,468,890 pounds of food distributed during 2008.

Mr. Terveer stated the Foodbank’s current facilitas severely inadequate. He
reminded, the strategic planning for a new facligégan five years ago. He reported the Food Bank
signed a land purchase and a design-build agreemBm¢ new facility would be located at the
corner of Aberdeen Road and Aluminum Road in thpelamd Industrial Park in Hampton, which



Page 9
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

was very close to Newport News. The Foodbank atlgreoperated out of a 20,000 square foot
facility, but planned to build a 50,000 square fémtility. The Foodbank embarked upon a $7
million capital campaign with commitments of $6.6llion, and were poised to start the public
campaign as soon as they closed on the land.

Mr. Terveer reminded the FY 2008 - 2012 CIP waraved by the City Council in

January 2007, and included $400,000 to be paidhéo Roodbank in five consecutive years,
beginning in FY 2008, for a total of $2 million. h& Foodbank was in receipt of the first annual
contribution of $400,000 for FY 2008. The Foodbaekognized, based on the current economic
situation faced by the City, resuming the paymdrthis annual contribution, for two fiscal years,
would be difficult; however, the City finished FYO@9 with a small surplus. Mr. Terveer asked
City Council to release the second annual conivbubf $400,000 immediately, and reaffirm its
intention, through a resolution, to contribute tb&al $2 million for the new Foodbank facility. (A
copy of Foodbank’s City of Newport News Quick Fgét¥ 2007-2008] is attached and made a part
of these minutes.)

Mr. Ken Krakaur, President, Board of DirectorepBbank of the Virginia Peninsula,
stated the Foodbank of the Virginia Peninsula néddeunderstand the City’s position on the $2
million commitment. They were excited about theojpct and wanted to obtain necessary
financing; but needed a confirmation of the $2 imill commitment to report to their financial
institution.

Mayor Frank understood the Foodbank needed aarorafvel for the bank. Mr.
Krakaur replied that was correct.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired how that would eft the City’'s cash surplus.
Ms. Cipriano replied the City would have cash fungdi

Councilwoman Woodbury recalled there was a $1lilfom surplus from the third
qguarter. Ms. Cipriano replied, based on the savihg City had instituted, throughout the entire
fiscal year, she felt a surplus would be in thémeaf $1.9 million.

Councilwoman Woodbury suggested that City Coumsdve forward with the
$400,000 appropriation to the Foodbank. It wasals/they needed reassurance.

Mayor Frank suggested that City Council apprapr& 00,000 to the Foodbank and
have the City Attorney draft a resolution laying tiow the City intended to pay the remainder of
the $2 million obligation, for adoption at the Sapber 8, 2009 Regular Meeting of City Council.

City Attorney Katz stated he would need additlanéormation. He reminded that
the CIP was a planning document; it was a strajg@gic to identify goals. Until City Council



Page 10
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

actually appropriated the funding, there was nall@ipligation just because something was in the
CIP. The resolution would have to be a very gdreqaression of intent and that was subject to an
appropriation because the present City Councilcawt bind a future City Council to expend
funding. The only way to do that was to approgriall the funding now and he did not get the
sense that City Council had the $1.6 million avadao do that.

Mayor Frank understood, but the idea was to esgptiee intent from City Council to
continue to honor the commitment it had to the Bawodk on a schedule that would be guided by the
City Manager and the Finance staff to appropriat@0$00 with a plan to make the additional
payments.

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the realtestx area was improving. City
Attorney Katz stated he would look into the magted provide a report to City Council.

VII.  Other Post-Employment Benefits Discussion on lfe and Health Insurances

Acting City Manager Morgan introduced Ms. Cindgt#¥, Assistant City Manager,
and Ms. LaVerne Lovett, Director, Department ofdfioe, to report on the Other Post Employment
Benefits (OPEB).

Ms. Rohlf reminded there were two aspects of @ig’s retirement program: 1)
Pension Fund; and 2) OPEB. She stated discussasrheld on the Pension Trust Fund at the July
14, 2009 City Council Work Session. After discossof the OPEB benefits in the past, staff
wanted to receive further direction with the ultimayoal of presenting draft ordinances to City
Council in September 2009, with action, hopefulfy®ctober 2009. She stated various concerns
were addressed that were expressed by City CoandiCity employees on how the changes would
impact long-term employees that were at or neareraent age. To address such concerns, staff
had phased in some of the recommendations andvéelihere would be less financial impact to
employees. Much consideration had been givenddripact that OPEB changes would have on
employees. Staff was attempting to do everythiogsjble to make recommendations that would
have minimal financial impact; however, the recomdaions would not impact current retirees
because they were not in a financial position todte any type of adjustment. There would be
some impact on employees that retired in the futome they were hopeful that by phasing in some
of the recommendations it would allow employees entbexibility. Ms. Rolfe introduced Ms.
Lovett to review the specifics of the recommendeiand talk about the financial implications and
how the recommendations impacted the City’'s anreguired contribution. She hoped staff could
walk through some of the recommendations and geeddirection in order to move forward. Ms.
Rohlf stated, unfortunately, staff had not beeneatad receive numbers for the life insurance
proposals; however, they were assured they woulthgenumbers within another week. They were
still waiting on the final financial numbers on tRablic Safety personnel piece. Hopefully, they



Page 11
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

would report back at the September 8, 2009 meett some financial implications and
recommendations for Public Safety employees.

Councilwoman McMillan reminded she had sent a oramdum dated December
11, 2009, requesting information regarding the iogtions the benefit changes would have on
employees with 10-years or less service with thg. AQNot only had the information been requested
by her, but also by Councilwoman Woodbury durinty@iouncil discussions. They both requested
figures on how the City would be affected if theaobes were only applied to new hires and
employees with 10-years or less service with thg. GCouncilwoman McMillan stated she still did
not see any figures that gave City Council optifmmsnstituting the recommendations for new hires
and employees with10-years or less service withQityyg She had asked for the information for
OPEB and the medical benefits and the issue haer teen addressed in any manner.

Ms. Lovett apologized, but promised to get thimrimation to City Council. She
stated as she went through each of the recommemopdsals, she would ensure that if it was a
piece that could be applied with a 10-year bendfit it would be addressed. Councilwoman
McMillan offered to supply a copy of her Decembé&r 2009 memo.

Acting City Manager Morgan understood CouncilwonacMillan wanted to know
the financial impact to the City if the proposeaifes to OPEB were only instituted for new hires
and employees with 10-years or less service wility.

Ms. Rohlf regretted the oversight and indicated tssue was picked up on the
Pension side. She did not realize it was an isstieOPEB.

Mayor Frank inquired about the Retirement He8ldvings Plan and how it worked.
Ms. Lovett replied the Retirement Health SavinganPlvas an investment savings plan such as a
457 or 401 Retirement Plan. Contributions wereipuhe plan to accumulate, and were used only
to pay for medical bills after retirement. The iR@hent Health Savings Plan would have to be
mandatory for all new hires, and would not be vidn

Ms. Lovett noted the following recommendationso@py of the presentation, “Other
Post Employment Benefits (OPEB),” noting highligluk the recommendations is attached and
made a part of these minutes.):

Recommendation #1 - Close OPEB Fund to new membeasd establish a Retirement Health
Savings Plan

Mayor Frank inquired whether a retiree drew fumgdout of the plan to pay their
insurance premiums, or whether the premiums waredeectly from the fund. Ms. Lovett replied



Page 12
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

the retiree would direct the administrator to pesyinsurance premiums, co-pays or any medical
related bills.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired what would happsiould an employee
terminate their employment with the City. Ms. Laveeplied the funds accumulated in the plan
would go with the employee if they terminated the&sted employment with the City, but the
employee could not use the funds until age 55 a=rol

Councilwoman Vick inquired whether the accountuldobegin automatically for
new hires. Ms. Lovett replied the City would begontributing automatically on a new hire’s date
of employment; however, the new hire would havedosested before the funds would be theirs. If
an employee left the City before being vested, theyld not receive any of the funds accumulated
in the plan.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired what would happernthe funding should the
employee’s job be eliminated, through a reductiofisrce, prior to being vested.

Councilwoman McMillan stated she favored Recomaagion #1 because it did not
have an effect on current employees who had alreadgted on benefits. She stated new hires
would understand exactly where they stood and Bxatiat they were getting.

Ms. Rohlf reminded that current employees habeavith the City for ten or more
years before they were eligible to receive any OBEBefits.

There was consensus among City Council in suggfdkecommendation #1.

Recommendation #2 — Pre-65 — No change recommended current retirees

Ms. Lovett stated current retirees would contitmieeceive a 69% contribution from
the City, to include a Cost-of-Living-AdjustmentQCA), each year. Recommendation #2 would
have no impact to the City’s savings.

There was consensus among City Council in suggdtecommendation #2.

Recommendation #3 — Pre-65: Reduction in the City’®remium contribution for employees
retiring on or after January 1, 2010

Ms. Lovett reported a new dollar cap would balgsthed for the City’'s premium
contribution for employees retiring after Januarg@10, with an annual COLA added. The City's



Page 13
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

contribution for single coverage would be capped=#b of the total December 31, 2009 premium.
The City’s contribution for all other coverages Wwbbe capped at 50% of the total December 31,
2009 premium.

Mayor Frank inquired about the cost differenshbuld the City continue the 69% it
was presently now doing and raise the other to 75%.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about reducingdapped amount to 60% for all
other retiree healthcare coverage and 69% foreiog¥erage. Ms. Rohlf replied staff would report
back to City Council on 69% for single and 60%dtrother coverages.

Mayor Frank stated maybe the City should pay @#%he Cost-of-living instead of
100%.

Mayor Frank inquired about the reason for suctpality in the percentage of
premium payments towards healthcare coveragerigtesand family plans. He felt it was not right
to treat employees differently, who had a familyg aatired early, from those employees who did
not have a family. He was not comfortable with theommendation.

Ms. Lovett explained the City found that both wpes worked in most families.
During active years, each spouse would be enraliedeir own employer’s health insurance plan,
but in planning for retirement both would beconeaa of the City’s health insurance plan.

Councilwoman McMillan stated she did not beliexech a scenario should be a
consideration in what the City was doing. Whetb@meone’s spouse had another job and other
benefits was not any of the City’s concern. Thiy €hould be providing a benefit plan that was fair
and equitable for its employees. If and when arpleyee or his/her spouse looked towards
retirement, viewed their financial packet, and dedithat one benefit plan was better than the other
was their personal choice that they should be &tbte make.

Ms. Rohlf stated when one looked at the annuainprms of what the City paid for
health insurance, single coverage cost one-halfhait the City paid for family coverage. A single
employee could have a case by stating that thewziydiscriminating against him/her and then, in
turn, request that the City to pay 100% of the puvemfor their single coverage to equal what the
City paid for family coverage.

Councilwoman McMillan stated one had to rementbat more coverage costs more
money and the City should not be making up priganarios. Someone’s private income was no



Page 14
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

one’s business. What people decided to do, ragattieir benefits, should not be part of the City's
plan.

Ms. Lovett agreed with Councilwoman McMillan, hotlicated she was just trying
to make a point about the impact on the cost ofptaa. The City was trying to make up a more
sharing of the cost.

Mayor Frank asked that staff provide the inforigratn clear narrative form so that
City Council could truly understand the issues,rdgmmmendations, and the consequences.

Councilwoman McMillan recalled City Council preusly asked that such
information be put into a graph form to allow Coilrto better understand all the implications
and/or benefits of the recommendations.

Mayor Frank stated he would like the informatiprovided by staff refined, and
forwarded to City Council for study in advance theeting.

Acting City Manager Morgan stated it was the gofastaff to come back with the
parts that were agreed upon by City Council, nothrey savings, and have other pieces put on the
table for discussion.

Mayor Frank asked staff to provide understanddbfermation, regarding the
recommendations, in advance of the meeting. CdyrCil had some interesting ideas and valid
concerns that needed to be defined in order todingy to summarize the conclusion of the matter.

Ms. Lovett indicated she was clear on the firsl aecond recommendations, and
would provide a third recommendation with two se@® 1) A contribution of 69% for single; and
2) A contribution of 60% for all other coverageghaa phase-in option.

Recommendation #4 — For current and future Post-6%etirees: The city would contribute a
flat amount of $250 per retiree (per month) and $12 (per month) for spouses effective
January 1, 2010

Councilwoman McMillan questioned whether the $3h3onthly Medicare
Supplement Plan, with drug coverage, was the kestttle City could receive. She inquired about
the amount that Richmond paid for the same typplari. She recalled offering an example that
noted substantial savings were involved in going tdedicare Supplement as opposed to offering
the full benefits plan. The proposed recommendatvonld cost employees more than less. Ms.
Lovett stated the City had reduced its premiumedarly 50%; they were looking at $562 to $700



Page 15
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

for the previous plan. Councilwoman McMillan indied it was costing the retiree more. Ms.
Lovett replied it cost the retire $10 more per nhont

Ms. Lovett explained currently a retiree and lrés/spouse were paying $313 each,
per month, for the Medicare Supplement Plan witlgdroverage. The City proposed a contribution
of $250 per month for a retiree and $125 per mdathis/her spouse towards each of their $313
premium. The current monthly retiree/spouse dest City contribution, was $53 per month for
each. The proposed monthly premium for a retireale cost $63 and $188 for his/her spouse.
This would amount to a $10 per month increase Herretiree and $135 per month increase for
his/her spouse, totaling a combined increase 05$14

Councilwoman McMillan understood that the progbsecommendation increased
the spousal premium by $135. Ms. Lovett repliesl @ity currently contributed the same amount
for the retiree and his/her spouse. The proposal fer the City to contribute one-half of the
premium that it contributed currently. That theargs also recommended by the Retirement Board.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about phasingfie increase for the spouse.
Ms. Lovett replied she would review the option bBping-in the increase for the spouse.

Acting City Manager Morgan stated he and staffuldocome back with some
coherent information in September 2009.

Mayor Frank stated receiving information in wi@j regarding the life insurance,
would be a plus. Ms. Rohlf replied staff wouldapavhat they heard to ensure everyone was on the
same page when they met in September 2009.

VIIl. Miscellaneous Iltem

Mayor Frank noted his memorandum to City Coundiéted August 4, 2009,
regarding a $10,000 contribution to Virginians KHigh-Speed Rail. He stated high-speed rail was
an item that was becoming very significant. Viigits for High-Speed Rail were working to
acquire high-speed rail for Hampton Roads. Mayankirfelt the City needed to be at the table as
this was an important issue to the City and thernamity. He reminded that City Council decided
not to support the initiative in the budget. Thee&utive Director for Virginians for High-Speed
Rail then wrote a letter, in which Mayor Frank eapio City Council, by way of a letter, asking that
they reconsider their decision.

Councilwoman McMillan stated she appreciated vayor Frank was saying about
high-speed rail. She stated Virginians for Highe&g Rail had been around for quite a while. She



Page 16
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

noted correspondence went back to 2001. Their itecbad the very same information since 2001
or before. As far as she was concerned, the agafor High-Speed Rail talked a good talk, and
were nothing more than another lobbying group. féitethe City could effectively do its own
lobbying for high-speed rail in the City of Newpdtews, without giving the Virginians for High-
Speed Rail $10,000.

Councilwoman Woodbury noticed Virginians for Hi§peed Rail was a non-profit
group, not a State agency. She questioned how magtibeen done since 2001 as she reviewed the
information and saw nothing. This was 2009, arey tteceived $10,000 each year. She inquired
about what they did with the $10,000 they receifrech the City each year. She inquired whether
they used the $10,000 to support their bureaucr@uncilwvoman Woodbury did not see that they
were moving fast.

Councilwoman McMillan stated one saw the sameephthat appeared on the State
Transportation site and in the VML report. She dat see what Virginians for High-Speed Rail
were doing with their money.

Mayor Frank replied Virginians for High-Speed Radlvocated for high-speed rail.
The state had asked for money from the Stimulukdgcfor two high-speed rail projects: 1) Down
the South of the James River; and 2) Down the Ratdaron the CSX corridor. High-speed rail was
becoming an immediate issue. Virginians for Higre&d Rail had worked for the project for a long
time. Mayor Frank indicated he only asked becéiesevas asked. He felt the City should be at the
table in relation to what was happening regardiegtivo high-speed rail projects.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about Virginians féigh-Speed Rail and stated she
would like to talk to a representative to get adratnderstanding of what they did.

Mayor Frank stated he would invite a represevedtiom Virginians for High-Speed
Rail to make a presentation at an upcoming WorlkiSesn September 2009.

Councilwoman Woodbury stated the City had the rbfmilitan Planning
Organization.

Councilwoman Vick stated she would like to heesnf a representative from
Virginians for High-Speed Rail.

Councilman Bateman stated he would like to rexesv presentation from the
Virginians for High-Speed Rail.



Page 17
Minutes of Work Session
August 11, 2009

There was consensus among City Council to harepi@esentative from Virginians
for High Speed Rail to provide a presentation aigeoming City Council Work Session.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 4:50 P.M.

Jennifer D. Walker Joe S. Frank
Chief Deputy City Clerk Mayor
Presiding Officer

A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



